Public Document Pack

Cheshire E@,

Council%

Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning
Agenda

Date: Tuesday 12th April 2016
Time: 1.30 pm
Venue: Room G1 - Ground Floor, Westfields, Middlewich Road,

Sandbach CW11 1HZ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press.
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report.

PART 1 - MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT
1. Apologies for Absence
2. Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session

In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is
allocated for members of the public to address the meeting on any matter
relevant to the work of the body in question. Individual members of the public
may speak for up to 5 minutes but the Chairman or person presiding will decide
how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned where
there are a number of speakers. Members of the public are not required to give
notice to use this facility. However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24 hours’
notice is encouraged.

Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide at
least three clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the question
with that notice. This will enable an informed answer to be given.

4. Audlem Neighbourhood Plan - Decision to make the Plan (Pages 1 - 4)

To consider the attached report.

For requests for further information

Contact: Cherry Foreman

Tel: 01270 686463

E-Mail: cherry.foreman@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies



5. Sandbach Neighbourhood Plan - Decision to make the Plan (Pages 5 - 8)

To consider the attached report.



Page 1 Agenda Item 4

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning

Date of Meeting 12 April 2016
Report of: Director of Planning and Sustainable Development
Subject/Title: Audlem Neighbourhood Plan — Decision to make the Plan

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The Audlem Neighbourhood Development Plan (ANDP) was submitted to the
Council in July 2015 and, following a statutory publicity period, proceeded to
Independent Examination. The Examiners report recommended that, pending a
series of modifications to the plan, the plan would meet the prescribed
requirements and should proceed to referendum. A successful referendum has
now been held on the neighbourhood plan.

1.2  The Council must now ‘make’ the neighbourhood plan and bring it into force as
part of the Development Plan for Cheshire East.

2.0 Recommendations

21 That the Audlem Neighbourhood Plan is made and forms part of the
Development Plan for Cheshire East.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 A neighbourhood plan must meet a number of legal and procedural requirements
and meet the ‘Basic Conditions’ (as prescribed in Schedule 10, paragraph 8 of
the Localism Act). These Basic Conditions require neighbourhood plans to:

e Have appropriate regard to national policy.

e Contribute to the achievement of sustainable development.

e Be in general conformity with the strategic policies in the development
plan for the local area

e Be compatible with EU obligations

e Be compatible with human rights requirements

e Not be likely to have a significant effect on a European site or a
European offshore marine site.

3.2  An independent examination of the neighbourhood plan was undertaken and,
subject to modifications that have since been implemented, the plan is
considered to meet the basic conditions.

3.3 A referendum has now been held on the neighbourhood plan. The question put
to the local community was: ‘Do you want Cheshire East Council to use the
Neighbourhood Plan for Audlem to help it decide planning applications in the
neighbourhood area?”



3.4

3.5

4.0

41

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

Page 2

Paragraph 38A(4)(a) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
requires that where half or more of those voting in the Plan referendum vote in
favour of the Plan, that the Council make the Neighbourhood Plan and adopt it as
part of the Development Plan.

The referendum was held on 24" March and returned a positive vote in favour of
using the neighbourhood plan to help determine planning applications in the
neighbourhood area. Cheshire East Council must now ‘make’ the Neighbourhood
Plan and thereby enable it to become part of the development plan for the area
that it covers. This decision has been delegated to the Portfolio Holder for
Planning and Housing.

Wards Affected
Audlem Ward

Local Ward Members
Councillor Rachel Bailey
Policy Implications

The Neighbourhood Plan for Audlem contains a series of policies that will be
used when considering planning applications that are located within the defined
Neighbourhood Area. Once ‘made’ the Audlem Neighbourhood Plan forms part
of the statutory development plan and becomes, alongside the adopted Local
Plan, the starting point for determining relevant planning applications in that area.

Implications for Rural Communities

Audlem is a rural parish and the Audlem Neighbourhood Plan addresses a
number of rural issues including Business, Tourism and Employment and
Community Wellbeing. The policies in the plan have been developed by the
community, with opportunities for the rural community to participate in the plan
making process.

Financial Implications

The population of Audlem is 1,991and the referendum is estimated to cost
£4,700. This will be paid for through government grant (Neighbourhood Planning
Grant) and the service’s revenue budget.

Legal Implications

The Neighbourhood Plan is considered to meet the basic conditions and all
relevant legal and procedural requirements and this is supported in the
Examiner’s Report. A positive majority at the referendum means that the Council
is now obliged to “make” the plan. Following this, the Neighbourhood Plan would
form part of the Development Plan in accordance with which planning decisions
should be made unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The absence
of a 5 year housing land supply will render housing policies in the development
plan out of date and adversely affect the weight that can be ascribed to them.



10.0

10.1

11.0

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

12.0

12.1

12.2

13.0

Page 3

Risk Management

The decision to ‘make’ the Neighbourhood Plan is, like all decisions of a public
authority, open to challenge by Judicial Review. The risk of any legal challenge to
the Plan being successful has been minimised by the thorough and robust way in
which it has been prepared and tested.

Background and Options
The preparation of the Neighbourhood Plan began in September 2014.

The proposed Neighbourhood Plan and its supporting documents were submitted
to Cheshire East Council in July 2014.

Cheshire East Council undertook the required publicity between 10" August
2015 and 21st September 2015. Relevant consultees, residents and other
interested parties were provided with information about the submitted Plan and
were given the opportunity to submit comments to the Examiner.

The Borough Council appointed Mr. Timothy Jones as the independent Examiner
of the Plan. On reviewing the content of the Plan and the representations
received as part of the publication process, Mr. Jones decided not to hold a
public hearing.

The Examiner’s Report concluded that the Audlem Neighbourhood Plan, subject
to recommended modifications, does comply with the Basic Conditions and other
statutory requirements.

Next steps

Once made, the Audlem Neighbourhood Plan will be used in the Authority’s
statutory role to make decisions on and determine planning applications.

The Audlem Neighbourhood Plan will be published on the Neighbourhood
Planning pages of Cheshire East Councils Website and available for inspection
at Council Headquarters in Westfields, Audlem. A notice detailing where and
when the document can be inspected will be issued to all parties that have
registered an interest in the outcome of the process.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the
report writer:

Name: Tom Evans
Designation: Neighbourhood Planning Manager
Tel No: 01625 383709

Email: Tom.Evans@cheshireeast.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5 Agenda ltem 5

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning

Date of Meeting 12 April 2016
Report of: Director of Planning and Sustainable Development
Subject/Title: Sandbach Neighbourhood Plan — Decision to make the Plan

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The Sandbach Neighbourhood Development Plan (SNDP) was submitted to the
Council in July 2015 and, following a statutory publicity period, proceeded to
Independent Examination. The Examiners report recommended that, pending a
series of modifications to the plan, the plan would meet the prescribed
requirements and should proceed to referendum. A successful referendum has
now been held on the neighbourhood plan.

1.2  The Council must now ‘make’ the neighbourhood plan and bring it into force as
part of the Development Plan for Cheshire East.

2.0 Recommendations

21 That the Sandbach Neighbourhood Plan is made and forms part of the
Development Plan for Cheshire East.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 A neighbourhood plan must meet a number of legal and procedural requirements
and meet the ‘Basic Conditions’ (as prescribed in Schedule 10, paragraph 8 of
the Localism Act). These Basic Conditions require neighbourhood plans to:

e Have appropriate regard to national policy.

e Contribute to the achievement of sustainable development.

e Be in general conformity with the strategic policies in the development
plan for the local area

e Be compatible with EU obligations

e Be compatible with human rights requirements

e Not be likely to have a significant effect on a European site or a
European offshore marine site.

3.2  An independent examination of the neighbourhood plan was undertaken and,
subject to modifications that have since been implemented, the plan is
considered to meet the basic conditions.

3.3 A referendum has now been held on the neighbourhood plan. The question put
to the local community was: ‘Do you want Cheshire East Council to use the



3.4

3.5

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Page 6

Neighbourhood Plan for Sandbach to help it decide planning applications in the
neighbourhood area?”

Paragraph 38A(4)(a) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
requires that where half or more of those voting in the Plan referendum vote in
favour of the Plan, that the Council make the Neighbourhood Plan and adopt it as
part of the Development Plan.

The referendum was held on 24t March and returned a positive vote in favour of
using the neighbourhood plan to help determine planning applications in the
neighbourhood area. Cheshire East Council must now ‘make’ the Neighbourhood
Plan and thereby enable it to become part of the development plan for the area
that it covers. This decision has been delegated to the Portfolio Holder for
Planning and Housing

Wards Affected

Elworth, Sandbach Town, Ettiley Heath and Wheelock, Sandbach Heath and
East

Local Ward Members

Councillor Sam Corcoran; Councillor Gill Merry; Councillor Barry Moran;
Councillor Gail Wait.

Policy Implications

The Neighbourhood Plan for Sandbach contains a series of policies that will be
used when considering planning applications that are located within the defined
Neighbourhood Area. Once ‘made’ the Sandbach Neighbourhood Plan forms
part of the statutory development plan and becomes, alongside the adopted
Local Plan, the starting point for determining relevant planning applications in
that area.

Implications for Rural Communities

Sandbach is a parish which contains a large area of rural land and the Sandbach
Neighbourhood Plan addresses a number of rural issues including Protecting the
Open Countryside, Biodiversity and Landscape Character. The policies in the
plan have been developed by the community, with opportunities for the rural
community to participate in the plan making process.

Financial Implications
The population of Sandbach is 17, 976 and the referendum is estimated to cost

£27,500. This will be paid for through government grant (Neighbourhood
Planning Grant) and the service’s revenue budget.



9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.6

12.0

121

Page 7

Legal Implications

The Neighbourhood Plan is considered to meet the basic conditions and all
relevant legal and procedural requirements and this is supported in the
Examiner’s Report. A positive majority at the referendum means that the Council
is now obliged to “make” the plan. Following this, the Neighbourhood Plan would
form part of the Development Plan in accordance with which planning decisions
should be made unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The absence
of a 5 year housing land supply will render housing policies in the development
plan out of date and adversely affect the weight that can be ascribed to them.

Risk Management

The decision to ‘make’ the Neighbourhood Plan is, like all decisions of a public
authority, open to challenge by Judicial Review. The risk of any legal challenge to
the Plan being successful has been minimised by the thorough and robust way in
which it has been prepared and tested.

Background and Options
The preparation of the Neighbourhood Plan began in September 2014.

The proposed Neighbourhood Plan and its supporting documents were submitted
to Cheshire East Council in July 2014.

Cheshire East Council undertook the required publicity between 18" September
2015 to 2" November 2015. Relevant consultees, residents and other interested
parties were provided with information about the submitted Plan and were given
the opportunity to submit comments to the Examiner.

The Borough Council appointed Mr. Terry Heselton as the independent Examiner
of the Plan. On reviewing the content of the Plan and the representations
received as part of the publication process, Mr. Heselton decided not to hold a
public hearing.

The Examiner’s Report contains Mr. Heselton’s findings on legal and procedural
matters and his assessment of the Plan against the Basic Conditions. It
recommended that a number of modifications be made to the Plan which have
since been implemented.

Overall the examination concluded, that subject to the implementation of the
proposed modifications, the Sandbach Neighbourhood Plan does comply with
the Basic Conditions.

Next steps

Once made, the Sandbach Neighbourhood Plan will be used in the Authority’s
statutory role to make decisions on and determine planning applications.



12.2

13.0

Page 8

The Sandbach Neighbourhood Plan will be published on the Neighbourhood
Planning pages of Cheshire East Councils Website and available for inspection
at Council Headquarters in Westfields, Sandbach. A notice detailing where and
when the document can be inspected will be issued to all parties that have
registered an interest in the outcome of the process.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the
report writer:

Name: Tom Evans
Designation: Neighbourhood Planning Manager
Tel No: 01625 383709

Email: Tom.Evans@cheshireeast.gov.uk



	Agenda
	4 Audlem Neighbourhood Plan - Decision to make the Plan
	5 Sandbach Neighbourhood Plan - Decision to make the Plan

